UNITED

NATIONS C E R D

: : Distr.
Intern.atl_onall Convention on GENERAL
the Elimination
CERD/ C/ SR. 1325
of all Forms of 19 March 1999
Racial Discrimination

Original: ENGLISH

COWM TTEE ON THE ELI M NATI ON OF RACI AL DI SCRI M NATI ON
Fifty-fourth session
SUMMARY RECORD OF THE 1325t h MEETI NG

Hel d at the Palais des Nations, Geneva,
on Monday, 15 March 1999, at 3 p.m

Chai r man: M. ABOUL- NASR

| ater: M. YUTZIS
later: M. ABOUL-NASR

CONTENTS

CONSI DERATI ON OF REPORTS, COMMENTS AND | NFORMATI ON SUBM TTED BY STATES PARTI ES
UNDER ARTI CLE 9 OF THE CONVENTI ON (conti nued)

Thirteenth and fourteenth periodic reports of Kuwait

Draft concludi ng observations concerning the thirteenth and fourteenth
periodic reports of Finland

This record is subject to correction.

Corrections should be submtted in one of the working | anguages. They
shoul d be set forth in a nmenorandum and al so incorporated in a copy of the
record. They should be sent within one week of the date of this docunent to
the Oficial Records Editing Section, roomE. 4108, Pal ais des Nations, Ceneva

Any corrections to the records of the public neetings of the Commttee
at this session will be consolidated in a single corrigendumto be issued
shortly after the end of the session.

GE. 99- 40905 (E)



CERD/ C/ SR. 1325
page 2

The neeting was called to order at 3.10 p. m

CONSI DERATI ON OF REPORTS, COMVENTS AND | NFORMATI ON SUBM TTED BY STATES PARTI ES
UNDER ARTI CLE 9 OF THE CONVENTI ON (agenda item 4) (onti nued)

Thirteenth and fourteenth periodic reports of Kuwait (CERD/ C/ 299/ Add. 16
and Corr.1)

1. At the invitation of the Chairman, the nenbers of the del egation of
Kuwait took places at the Conmittee table

M. RAZZOOQ (Kuwait) affirmed his country's conmtnent to the
elimnaton of all forms of racismand racial discrimnation and its policy of
pronoting the equality of all nmenbers of society and guaranteeing all their
rights and freedons. Article 29 of the Constitution provided that all people
were equal in human dignity and in public rights and duties before the | aw,
wi thout distinction as to race, origin or |anguage. Kuwait had been one of
the first countries to accede to the Convention and had nmade the Universa
Decl aration of Human Rights a cornerstone of its policy and practice in the
area of human rights. Kuwait had al so been promi nent in committees on
enbar goes agai nst South Africa during the apartheid period.

3. The fourteenth report (CERD/ C/299/Add. 16 and Corr.1) dealt mainly with
measures taken under articles 2 to 7 of the Convention. Wth regard to
nationality, he drew attention to the devel opnents referred to in

par agraphs 15 and 16 of the report and to the establishnment of an Executive
Committee on illegal residents in the country and the fact that State policy
on the illegal residents known as bi doon, was beginning to bear fruit, as was
exemplified by Decree No. 60/1997 granting Kuwaiti nationality to the children
of martyrs killed during the Iraqgi invasion and occupation of Kuwait. He

i kewi se drew attention to the neasures taken for the protection of foreign

| abour, particularly donestic servants, described in the report (para. 31).

He observed that, under article 70 of the Constitution, the internationa

human rights instruments to which Kuwait had acceded had the sane status as
donmestic |egislation and were binding on all the conpetent authorities. The
International Committee of the Red Cross (ICRC) and the Office of the

Uni ted Nations Hi gh Comm ssioner for Refugees (UNHCR) continued to nonitor the
condi tions of detention and treatnent of detainees. He recalled that the
Nat i onal Assenmbly had established a Committee for the Defence of Human Ri ghts
to nonitor human rights issues (para. 33).

4, Hi s Government had taken a nunber of new measures and initiatives since
submitting its fourteenth periodic report. Wth regard to nationality, under
Amiral Decree No. 11/1998 Kuwaiti nationality would be granted to children who
had attained their majority by the tine their father had acquired Kuwaiti
nationality. The sane applied to adult grandsons and granddaughters through
the male line. Under Decree No. 202/1997, Kuwaiti nationality had been
granted to the children of certain w dows of bidoon, in an attenpt to solve

sone of the pending issues of illegal residents. |In order to regulate the
situation of foreign workers, Kuwait had concluded bil ateral agreenments with
I ndonesi a, the Islam c Republic of Iran, Mdrocco and the Philippines. 1In

1998, Kuwait had becone a party to the International Convention agai nst
Apartheid in Sports.



CERD/ C/ SR. 1325
page 3

5. In 1995, Kuwaitis had nunbered 655,820 - 41.6 per cent of the total
popul ation of 1,575,983 - while the remaining 920, 163 were non-Kuwaitis. The
next census would be conducted in the year 2000. Kuwait ensured that both
sections of the popul ati on enjoyed security, stability and a decent lifestyle.
It also provided free or | owcost health services to Kuwaitis and non-Kuwaitis
alike: in 1997, around US$ 416 mllion had been spent on health services for
Kuwai tis and around US$ 479 nmillion on health services for non-Kuwaitis.
Education and training was also offered to all on an equal basis as could be
seen froman annex to the report, on student enrolnment; all had the right of
access to any public place or service. The right of recourse to the courts
was guaranteed by article 166 of the Constitution.

6. In February 1999, the last remining Jordanians inprisoned for
col l aboration with the Iraqgi occupation authorities had been rel eased.

7. Lastly, he drew Commttee nenbers' attention to the violations of the
articles of the Convention that had taken place during the Iraqi occupation of
Kuwait and di scrimnation against Kuwaiti prisoners of war in Irag, who nust
be rel eased. The Convention nust be seen in conjunction with other human
rights conventions and international humanitarian | aw

8. M. YUTZIS (Country Rapporteur) said the |large nunber of representatives
in the Kuwaiti del egation was a sign of how seriously the State party took the
i mpl ement ati on of the Convention. He conplinmented the Kuwaiti Governnent on
the regularity of its reports. Referring to M. Razzooqi's closing remarks

he said that, in its concluding observations concerning Kuwait's previous
report, the Committee had recognized the difficulties that Iraq' s occupation
had entailed for inplenmentation of the Convention in Kuwait. Iraq's
conpliance with the Convention should be considered when it submtted its own
report.

9. He commended the State party on the progress it had made in the areas of
nationality (report, paras. 15 to 17) and the status of foreign | abour

(para. 31). He also welconmed the establishnment of the commttees on the

bi doon and on the defence of human rights, and the abolition of the State
Security Court (para. 53). He noted that proportionately nore was bei ng spent
on health services for non-Kuwaitis than for Kuwaitis.

10. He was concerned, however, that the CGovernnment's report referred back to
the |l egal review contained in the previous report (CERD/ C/ 226/ Add.5), which
had stated that racial discrimnation was non-existent in Kuwait and that
therefore no direct |egislation had been enacted to deal with the phenonmenon.
The Committee, in its concluding observations, had recomended that Kuwait
shoul d revise the Penal Code in order to introduce specific legislation to

i mpl ement the provisions of article 4 of the Convention (A/48/18, para. 380).
If Kuwait maintained its position it would not be conplying with all the

provi sions of the Convention. Wth regard to article 4 of the Convention, he
i nqui red about the proposed anmendnents to Kuwait's Penal Code, as described in
paragraph 33 (c) of the report, and asked how the new provisions related to
non-citizens.

12. In response to the Committee's recommendati on that the State party
shoul d include denmographic information about, in particular, the status of



CERD/ C/ SR. 1325
page 4

non- Kuwai ti residents, paragraph 47 merely referred the Conmittee back to the
previous report, which had not given such information either. Referring again
to the concl udi ng observations, he noted that naturalized persons had now had
been granted the right to vote in national and municipal elections, but he
wonder ed about the status of working people, particularly the unskilled, who
in 1996 reportedly nunbered about 850, 000. Many of them - from Bangl adesh,

I ndia, the Philippines and Sri Lanka - were in domestic service and, according
to informati on he had received, many were under the age of 18 and had entered
the country on fal se docunents.

13. Paragraph 31 of the report |isted a nunber of formal measures to provide
foreign workers with | egal protection. He would |ike to know, in addition,
what specific nmeasures derived from agreements Kuwait had al ready signed and
what specific nmeasures arose from what had been referred to as the

“regul ation” of the situation of foreign |abour in Kuwait. 1In both those
cases, he asked what |aws protected the recruitnment of donmestic workers, and
specifically what type and length of contract they were offered; what the

m ni num | egal wage was and how it was regul ated; what health insurance they

were offered - particularly in the light of the US$ 476 mllion spent on
health services for non-Kuwaitis; how many such workers were | egal and how
many illegal; why foreign workers were able to becone union nenbers only after

five years and why they had no voting rights even then; and how the
exploitation of mnors was prevented. He also asked what rights adult
i mm grant workers and their children had to educati on.

14. The situation of the bidoon (statel ess persons) residing in Kuwait was
said to be a primary concern of the authorities (paras. 17 to 23), yet despite
the pronul gati on of Decree No. 221/1993 ainmed at dealing with their affairs
their situation remained unclear

15. According to information he had received from various sources, in
preparation for the independence of Kuwait - between 1959 and 1960 - one third
of residents had obtained citizenship, one third partial citizenship and the
remai nder had received only certificates declaring themw thout citizenship,
but had been told they were being considered for citizenship. Wat had
happened wi th the bidoon at that juncture? Many were in fact nomads and they
had been unable to obtain citizenship directly because article 1 of the
Kuwai ti Nationality Law of 1959 granted citizenship to those who had settled
in Kuwait prior to 1920 and to their descendants through the paternal line -
they were first-class citizens. There was also a second class of citizens
who had arrived after 1920 and had been naturalized under other clauses, but
could also lose citizenship. Because of of thebidoon's Iargely nomadic
characteristics, they came within article 25 (d) of a previous version of the
Nationality Law which exenpted nomads from the need for entry visas and
residence permts, allowing themto enter and | eave the country at will. That
article had | ater been abolished, and thebidoon who had settled in Kuwait had
found thensel ves undocunented and with no specific nationality. As he
interpreted it, they had been unable to obtain citizenship since they had not
been able to prove residency. After 1959, bidoon were issued with tenporary
speci al travel documents, and were eligible for enploynent and gover nment
services such as health, education and welfare. Manybidoon had worked in the
police and the armed forces. However, in 1985 the Governnment had initiated a
policy restricting eligibility for travel docunents, and in 1986 public and



CERD/ C/ SR. 1325
page 5

private sector enployees had all been obliged to produce valid passports, with
the result that between 1988 and 1990 t housands of bi doon were dism ssed from
their jobs.

16. During the Iraqi occupation of Kuwait, bidoon, having no valid

passports, had been unable to enter Saudi Arabia and had escaped to Iraqg which
had all owed them free transit over the borders, but at the end of the war

t housands of those stateless persons had remai ned stranded outside Kuwait and
had been refused re-entry. That had still been the case in 1995; could the
del egati on el aborate on the current situation? Wat was the current status of
the bi doon? How many citizenship applications had been consi dered and how
many identity cards had been issued? How nmany bi doon were estinmated to be
living in Kuwait? How nany people were currently in deportation centres, and
how many of them were bi doon? For how |l ong were they detai ned without

judicial or other proceedings.

17. What neasures had been taken to guarantee the rights of thebidoon in
such areas as work, health and education, which were all aspects related to
article 5 of the Convention? What neasures were being taken or considered to
avoid situations in which the child of a Kuwaiti wonman and abi doon nman was
consi dered statel ess, since nationality was only transmtted by the father?
How many people were in that situation? Decree No. 60/1997 (para. 23) granted
nationality to one category of those children, and he understood that

300 children of Kuwaiti mothers and non-Kuwaiti fathers had been naturali zed;
but how many remai ned with no nationality?

18. What | egislation was in force with regard to refugees and asyl um
seekers? What were the procedures for processing requests for refugee status?
Certain persons requesting asylumwere held in the Tal ha detention centre;

what were the conditions of their detention? How many refugees were there in
Kuwait? According to UNHCR, there were around 25,000, including 15,000 Iraqgis
or persons of lraqi origin, 8 000 Palestinians and 2,000 Somalis. What
specific legal, adm nistrative or other measures had Kuwait taken to

regul arize the status of those persons and to ensure them adequate conditions
of health and education?

19. He asked what practical neasures had been taken to inplenent the

provi sions of article 7 of the Convention, particularly with regard to the
training of |aw enforcenent officers, in the protection of human rights, in
conformty with the Conmittee's Ceneral Recommendation Xl Il and the concerns
it had expressed in its concludi ng observati ons on Kuwait's previous report.

20. M. VALENCI A RODRI GUEZ wel comed the fact that the current report had
been drawn up in accordance with the Coormittee's guidelines and in response to
its questions and observations on previous reports. It should be read in
conjunction with former reports, since it was only an update, but the

Gover nnment had provided nore conprehensive information in annexes. A firm
rejection of all forms of racial discrimnation was a pillar of Kuwaiti

policy, reflected in its legislation and its adm nistrative and judici al
practice, and was a basic value of Kuwaiti society.

21. Wth regard to the amendment to article 7 of the Nationality Act,
recogni zi ng Kuwaiti nationality for children born after their father had



CERD/ C/ SR. 1325
page 6

acquired Kuwaiti nationality, he observed that naturalized persons acquired
all the rights and obligations pertaining to citizenship and that their
children ought therefore to obtain the nationality of the parent w thout any
need for specific | egal provisions. Wat would be the situation of children
born before the naturalization of their father but still mnors at the time of
naturalization of their father, if he wi shed themalso to be recognized as
Kuwaiti citizens? The anmendnment to the Act inplied that previously there had
been, in practice, a discrimnatory policy towards the children of naturalized
persons. Although it was not specifically within the purview of the
Comrittee, it should be noted that there was a marked di stinction between
naturalized fathers and nothers; what would be the situation of children of a
natural i zed not her?

22. Par agraph 16 nmentioned anendments granting naturalized persons the right
to vote. That right, too, was normally inherent in citizenship, but it
appeared fromthe anmendnents that that had not previously been the case, from
which it followed that discrimnation against naturalized persons had existed
with regard to voting

23. He wel coned the neasures taken to regulate the situation of illega
residents, particularly through the creation of a Central Cormittee. Mire

i nformati on was needed on the results of such neasures, since the Committee
was in favour of resolving the situation of illegal residents through

| egi slative and adm nistrative neasures which recogni zed both the rights of
the State to admt foreigners and the fundanental human rights which every
human bei ng shoul d enjoy. He wel coned the explanation of the termnmbidoon and
the information provided on the actions of thebidoon during the Iraq

occupation of Kuwait. It was gratifying to note that neasures had been taken
with regard to foreign workers, particularly domestic workers, since that had
been one of the Cormittee's concerns. It hoped to receive nore infornmation

about progress in that field, particularly given the statement in paragraph 32
that the State studied and took into consideration the comrents nade by the
i nternational humanitarian and ot her organizations with which it cooperated

24. Wth regard to inplenmentation of article 4 of the Convention, he asked
what stage the bill anending various provisions of the Kuwaiti Penal Code
(para. 33 (c)) had reached; the changes should bring Kuwaiti |egislation nore
into line with the requirements of article 4.

25. Noting with satisfaction Kuwait's accession to many international human
rights instruments and that international treaties to which Kuwait was party
had the sane status as donestic |aw and were binding on all authorities, he
asked whether it was also possible to invoke them before the courts.

26. There had apparently been no court cases during the period covered by
the report, but he trusted that the Governnment would informthe Conmttee of
any future cases. He welcomed the news that the State Security Court had been
abol i shed and that the cases previously within its conpetence had passed to
the jurisdiction of ordinary courts.

27. He commended the nmeasures taken, both directly by the State and through
encouragenent to private initiatives, to assist in the econom c and socia
devel opnment of other countries, particularly those in the region, which



CERD/ C/ SR. 1325
page 7

reflected a policy of pronoting cooperation and international understanding.
He hoped for a prompt end to the unfortunate consequences of the invasion by
I raq which had constituted violations of the Convention and humanitarian | aw.

28. M. SHERIFIS extended a particular welcome to the head of the

del egation, a former menber of the Conmittee. Kuwait's regular reporting and
the size of its delegation testified to Kuwait's desire to maintain a positive
di al ogue with the Committee. He recognized Kuwait's anti-apartheid stance but
drew the del egation's attention to the Conmttee's broader interpretation of
article 3 of the Convention in its General Recommendation Xl X (95),
particularly paragraph 3 on racial segregation, and its invitation to States
parties to monitor all such trends, to work for the eradication of any
negati ve consequences and to describe any such action in their periodic
reports. He hoped that the State party woul d take account of those coments
inits future reports, particularly in the light of its stated willingness to
act on its dialogue with the Commttee.

29. He asked whether Kuwait had initiated the procedure for ratification of
the amendment to article 8, paragraph 6 of the Convention; if not, he
suggested that it did so. He also asked whether it might consider neking the
opti onal declaration under article 14.

30. As a result of the invasion of Kuwait there had been many refugees and
di spl aced persons in the country. Drawing attention to the Committee's
Ceneral Recommendation XXIl (96), he asked whether there were still persons

who had been unable to return to their homes in Kuwait and whether all those
who had returned had had their property restored to themor received
appropri ate conpensati on

31. He wel coned Kuwait's rejection of racial discrimnation and segregation
(para. 12) and the proposed addition of two articles to Act No. 16 of 1960
(para. 33 (c)), bringing legislation into closer conformty with article 4.
Wth regard to inplementation of article 7, the report sinply referred back to
the twelfth report.

32. He asked whether the goals, objectives and contents of the Convention
and the contents of the reports submtted to the Committee were publicized in
Kuwai t and whether the comments of nenbers of the Conmittee and the concl uding
observations were published. Had Kuwait established or considered
establishing a national institution to facilitate inplenmentation of the
Convention pursuant to CGeneral Reconmendation XVII (93)? |If not, he hoped it
woul d consi der establishing such an institution. He |ooked forward to further
information, either orally or in the next report.

33. M. NOBEL said that sone necessary information was m ssing fromthe
report. Regarding specifically the denographic conposition of the country,
the World Directory of Mnorities reported that Kuwaitis did not account for a
| arge percentage of the overall population, which contained many ot her groups;
it would be useful to have a popul ati on breakdown.

34. Clarification was needed, for instance, of the status of thebidoon,
whet her they maintained a nomadic |ifestyle and whether there were el ements of
Bedui n anong them Ammesty International had reported in its previous annua



CERD/ C/ SR. 1325
page 8

report that a parlianmentary comrittee had been created to |look into the | ega
situation of the nore than 100, 000 statel ess persons belonging to so-called

bi doon society, and that the bi doon popul ati on was growi ng, to the extent that
bi doons woul d nunber 200, 000 by the year 2006. In his report on contenporary
forms of racism racial discrimnnation, xenophobia and related intol erance
(E/CN. 4/ 1997/ 71/ Add. 2), the Special Rapporteur of the Comr ssion on Human

Ri ghts had concluded that the question of thebidoon should be settled once
and for all in an equitable and humane fashion and that such persons shoul d be
guar ant eed access to social services (paras. 68 and 69 (a)).

35. The report was encouraging, relating as it did the significant efforts
to resolve the problens of discrimnation. Many committees and institutions
wer e being established, but the Conmttee would |ike to know what they had
achieved in practice and what the results had been at the grass-roots |evel
for those affected by discrimnation. Wat were the prospects for the future
wor k of those institutions?

36. Par agraph 18 of the fourteenth periodic report said that in 1993 a
Central Committee had been established, but that it had been replaced in 1996
by the Executive Conmittee. Wy had the Central Committee been di sbhanded?
Had it failed to achieve its objectives? Wat action had been taken since

t hen?

37. Par agraph 20 referred to the issue of cards, presunably identity cards.
How many had been issued and to whon? What conditions had to be net to be
eligible for such a docunent, and what was the situation of those who did not
have one?

38. Par agraph 21 was not sufficiently explicit: it would be useful to know
the nunmber of cases dealt with by the subcommttees of the Executive Committee
and how many were still pending. Concerning paragraph 22, the Comrittee would
li ke more specific information on how the Executive Committee was endeavouring
to solve the problemof illegal residents.

39. Regardi ng the issue of donmestic servants, it was encouraging that a

Departnent had been established to nonitor | abour questions and to intervene
to settle disputes between enpl oyers and enpl oyees (para. 31 (e)). How nany
cases had been filed with that agency, and how had they been settled? Ws it
really possible for any domestic enployee to have recourse to such a renedy?

40. M. Yutzis took the Chair.

41. M. de GOUTTES said that, after difficult years followi ng the invasion
of Kuwait by Iraq and the resulting obstacles to full inplenmentation of the
Convention, the Committee had awaited Kuwait's latest report with particular
interest, but the fourteenth report had been somewhat di sappointing and had
not supplied sufficient information on at |east two fundamental points. On
denographi ¢ conposition, the reference in paragraph 47 to the twelfth report
was not hel pful, because that report had not contained any specific
denmographic data either. It was to be hoped that the next census would enable
the delegation to provide nore information. On the inplenentation of articles
2 to 7 of the Convention, paragraph 49 |likew se nmentioned the 1993 report, yet
the information therein was over five years old. |In August 1996 the Committee




CERD/ C/ SR. 1325
page 9

had al ready requested information on neasures taken to protect vul nerable
groups of foreigners, in particular Palestinians, stateless Arabs, lraqis and
nationals fromcountries which had not been part of the anti-Iraq coalition,
as well as on the treatnment of national and foreign donestic workers.

42. He sought further details on the three positive initiatives nentioned in
paragraph 33: the establishnment of a Conmttee for the Defence of Human

Ri ghts; the formation of a working group to look into human rights issues; and
the tabling of a bill anending various provisions of the Penal Code through
the addition of two articles, one prohibiting incitement to, or acts of,
discrimnation and the other stipulating that such discrimnation was a

puni shabl e of fence for any public official. What had been the inpact of those
initiatives on the fight against racial and ethnic discrimnation?

43. Ms. ZQU said that paragraph 10 (b) of the country report acknow edged
that the Commttee required further denographic data, but the report did not
contain any such information. In his oral introduction, however, the
representative of Kuwait had hinself given several figures, fromwhich it
energed that there were nore non-Kuwaitis than Kuwaitis living in the country.
What was the percentage of different groups anong non- Kuwaitis?

44, Par agraphs 24 to 30 discussed the status of wonen, but it was not clear
to her whether wonen had the right to vote. 1In the introduction to the 1993
country report, the Kuwaiti del egation had stated that the Kuwaiti Governnent
had been considering giving wonmen that right. As far as she knew, in the past
Kuwai ti women had not been allowed to own property. Was that still the case?

45. In paragraph 23, it was stated that children of martyrs classified as

bi doon coul d acquire Kuwaiti nationality. G ven that applications were

deci ded on a case-by-case basis (para. 21), how many persons had actually been
granted Kuwaiti citizenship?

46. What was the current situation of foreign wonmen donestic servants, a
particularly vulnerable group, with regard to their | anguage, culture and
religion? For exanple, could women workers from the Philippines, many of whom
were Catholic, attend services in a Catholic church? There had been nedia
reports that many of those wonen were discrimn nated agai nst or even

persecuted. How many such cases had conme to the courts, and what judgenents
had been handed down? Were the children of foreign workers residing in Kuwait
entitled to equal treatnment in school s?

47. The fourteenth report contai ned many gaps, for instance on

i npl ementation of articles 4, 6 and 7 of the Convention. It was to be hoped
that Kuwait's next report would be prepared in accordance with the Cormmittee's
gui del i nes.

48. M. DI ACONU said that it was encouraging to | earn about the new

| egi slation passed in Kuwait to inplenent the Convention. G ven that the
nunber of foreigners living in Kuwait exceeded the total population of

Kuwai tis, measures to prevent racial discrimnation were of the utnpst

i mportance. According to paragraph 20, the question of rectifying the
situation of illegal residents was to be resolved case by case, and criteria
had been adopted for that purpose. Wat were those criteria?



CERD/ C/ SR. 1325
page 10

49. Concerning article 4, he noted that the Constitution declared equality
for all before the law without distinction of race, origin or |anguage. That
presumably included ethnic origin, which would thus neet the requirenents of
the Convention. But in the Penal Code, there was no specific provision
prohibiting acts of racial discrimnation as required under article 4.

Li kewi se, he saw that |egislation prohibited associations fromintervening in
religious or political conflicts or provoking discord or sectarianism He was
not sure whether that covered the provisions of the Convention concerning
organi zati ons which promoted or incited racial discrimnation. In any case
Kuwaiti |aw did not prohibit the actual existence of such organizations and
hence did not conply with the requirenents under article 4.

50. He noted with interest that Kuwait had ratified 114 conventions relating
to labour rights, nore than nost other States, and that was to be comrended
Did that list include ILO Convention No. 111 concerning Discrimnation in
Respect of Enpl oynment and Occupation, as well as those on trade-union rights
and on collective agreements?

51. He wel coned the bilateral agreements which Kuwait had concluded with the
countries of origins of many of the imm grant workers. But the report was
silent on the Pal estinians. During the discussion of the twelfth periodic
report, the Committee had noted that the mapjority of foreign workers in Kuwait
were Pal estinians. Wy had no agreenment been concluded with the Pal estinian
Authority to protect their labour rights? Could information be provided on
the situation of Palestinian workers in Kuwait with regard to such rights as
the right to work, to health care and to education?

52. Ms. SADIQ ALl said that, according to reports, Irag had granted an
ammesty to all Arab prisoners in Iraq. Kuwait and other sources clained that
there were still Kuwaiti prisoners of war in Irag. Wat was their position
or had they been rel eased?

53. She asked what Kuwait's response had been to the findings and
recomrendati ons of the Special Rapporteur of the Comm ssion on Human Ri ghts

on contenporary forms of racism racial discrimnation, xenophobia and rel ated
i ntol erance concerning mgrant workers, in particular donestic workers of

I ndi an, Sri Lankan, Bangl adeshi and Philippine origin, whose rights were
deni ed and on the bidoon, stateless persons and illegal residents.

54. Regar di ng paragraph 31 (f), how did the agreenents drawn up with a
number of | abour-exporting States protect the rights of workers fromthose
countries?

55. M. GARVALOV said that the report had not been prepared in accordance
with the Committee's guidelines and thus gave the inpression that no specific
data had been provided on inplenentation of articles 2 to 7.

56. It emerged fromthe report that the problem of thebidoon had not been
entirely resolved. On that issue, the 1997 World Directory of Mnorities of
the Mnority Rights Goup International alleged that thebidoon had been
accused of collaborating with the Iraqis during the Gulf war, that many had
been tortured or executed or had “di sappeared”, that Kuwait was attenpting to



CERD/ C/ SR. 1325
page 11

expel them including those serving in the arned forces, and that private
school s had been ordered not to accept bidoon children. Could the Kuwaiti
del egation provide some clarification on those allegations?

57. The Mnority R ghts G oup International also maintained that the 25,000
Pal estinians currently in Kuwait (400,000 prior to the Gulf war) were denied
civil rights and the right of domicile. Could the Kuwaiti delegation comrent
on that assertion?

58. Wth regard to wonen, the fourteenth report failed to answer questions
rai sed during consideration of Kuwait's twelfth periodic report about whether
wonen working in Kuwait as donestic servants, who were mainly of Asian origin
had been the victinms of racial discrimnation; he hoped that further

i nformati on could be provided.

59. The Committee would Iike to know whet her the Convention could be invoked
directly before a court of |aw or whether that required the adoption of
speci al |egislation.

60. The report failed to provide data on the dempgraphic conposition of the
Kuwai ti popul ati on and on whether Kuwait still maintained its earlier position
that there was no racial discrimnation in the country.

61. M. Aboul - Nasr resuned the Chair.

62. M. van BOVEN said that the inpressive size and status of the del egation
made it easier for the Conmittee to enter into a nmeaningful dialogue with the
State party.

63. The Speci al Rapporteur of the Conm ssion on Human Ri ghts on contenporary
forms of racism racial discrimnnation, xenophobia and related intol erance had
drawn attention in docunment E/CN.4/1997/71/Add.2 to the heavy dependence of
the Kuwaiti economy on foreign |abour, and to the fact that the 850,000 or so
unskil I ed workers from Bangl adesh, India, the Philippines and Sri Lanka who
were enployed primarily in hones, by cleaning firnms and in the petrol eum

i ndustry, experienced the greatest nunber of problens, in the form of
ill-treatment, non-paynment of wages or sexual abuse. There had been no

| egi sl ation governing the recruitnment of donmestic workers when the Specia
Rapporteur had visited the country in |ate 1996. However, paragraph 31 of the
Kuwai ti report described recent neasures ained at inproving the situation of
donmestic workers. Mnisterial Ordinance No. 115 of 1996 had pronul gated
statutes regulating private recruitment agencies, which often earned huge
profits fromtrafficking in workers. Could he take it, therefore, that the
Speci al Rapporteur's findings were no | onger applicable? The situation of
donmestic workers nust be closely nonitored because they were exposed to an
aggravated form of discrimnation involving both racial discrimnation and
gender issues. He asked the delegation to informthe Comnmttee of the gist of
annex 8 to the report containing Kuwait's reply to a conplaint concerning
donmestic workers submtted by a Philippine organization in Australia to the
Centre for Human Rights in Geneva. He would also wel cone nore detail ed

i nformation, perhaps in the next periodic report, on the Departnment to

Regul ate Recruitnent Agencies, referred to in paragraph 31 (e) of the report.



CERD/ C/ SR. 1325
page 12

64. The Speci al Rapporteur had reconmmended that priority should be given to
finding a definitive, humane and equitable solution to the problem of the

bi doon, sone of whom appeared to be stateless in their own country, and to
guar ant eei ng them access to social services. The International Labour

Organi zation (1LO had requested the Governnent to provide information on
measures taken to inplenment the Special Rapporteur's recomendati on and the
Committee hoped to be informed of such action in Kuwait's next periodic
report.

65. Whil e he wel comed Kuwait's replies in Part |11l of the report to the
comrents and questions of nmenmbers of the Conmittee, he would have appreciated
a nore detailed response to the Cormttee's concludi ng observations on
Kuwait's previous report. For exanple, nore concrete information was needed
on action to elimnate discrimnation deriving fromthe dual system of
citizenship. The Conmittee had al so recommended that the Penal Code shoul d be
revised in order to introduce specific legislation to inplenment the provisions
of article 4 of the Convention in accordance with the Conmttee's Genera

Reconmendations VIII and XIV. The bill anmending the Penal Code referred to in
paragraph 33 (c) of the report prohibited incitenent to discrimnation on a
nunber of grounds that did not include race. 1t also referred only to

citizens although non-citizens were nore vul nerable to acts of discrimnmnation.
A second proposed anmendnment mede it a punishable offence for any public
official to fail to respect the full equality of the persons wi th whom he
dealt, provided that their circunstances and | egal status were simlar. He
asked for clarification of the neaning of the phrase beginning “provided that”
and pointed out that discrimnation by private persons should al so be
prohibited in accordance with article 2 of the Convention.

66. The Committee had further reconmended that the right of recourse in
courts should be guaranteed to victinms of discrimnation and that |aw

enf orcenent personnel should be given adequate training in human rights norns
in the light of General Recommendation Xl I1. There had been no followup in
the report to either of those recomrendati ons.

67. He joined M. Sherifis in urging Kuwait to make the decl arati on under
article 14 of the Convention and to ratify the amendnment to article 8.

68. The CHAIRMAN referring to the Conmttee's request for denopgraphic data,
said he had received a docunment, submitted by Kuwait to the secretariat on
29 January 1999, containing full and inpressive statistics.

69. The del egation of Kuwait w thdrew




CERD/ C/ SR. 1325
page 13

Draft concluding observations concerning the thirteenth and fourteenth
periodic reports of Finland (CERD/ C/54/ M sc.28/ Rev.1; future CERD/ C/...)

Paragraphs 1 and 2

70. Par agraphs 1 and 2 were adopted

Par agraph 3

71. M . GARVALQV proposed that the second sentence shoul d be anmended to
read: “At the regional level, Finland has ratified the Framework Convention
of the Council of Europe for the Protection of National Mnorities”

72. Paragraph 3, as anended, was adopted

Paragraphs 4 to 10

73. Paragraphs 4 to 10 were adopted

Par agr aph 11

74. M. SHAHI proposed replacing “Romani” by “Roma

75. Paragraph 11, as anended, was adopted

Par agr aph 12

76. Paragraph 12 was adopted

Par agraphs 13 and 18

77. M. van BOVEN said he was unsure whether the issue raised in
paragraph 13 canme within the scope of the Convention. He proposed that the
par agraph be del et ed.

78. M. SHERIFIS (Country Rapporteur) said that Finland was one of only 10
Member States of the United Nations that applied a refugee quota system He
woul d prefer to keep the reference if M. van Boven could reword the paragraph
in such a way as to establish a link with the Conventi on.

79. M. YUTZI S noted that paragraph 18 dealt with the same subject.

80. M. van BOVEN said that once the quota established under a quota system
was reached, States tended to refuse any further intake of refugees although
there m ght be good reasons for admtting nore.

81. He proposed del eting paragraph 13 and adding the followi ng sentence to
paragraph 18: "It is recommended that the quota system be applied w thout any
di scrim nation based on race or ethnic or national origin."

82. M. NOBEL said that the refugees accepted under the quota system were
those for whom UNHCR had found it particularly difficult to arrange asyl um



CERD/ C/ SR. 1325
page 14

There was a tendency, however, to select particular ethnic groups when
choosing refugees to fill the quota. He supported M. van Boven's proposal

83. M. SHERIFIS (Country Rapporteur) said he agreed with M. van Boven's
proposal to del ete paragraph 13. He suggested that paragraph 18 be reworded
to read: "Efforts should be made to increase the nunber of quota refugees,
wi t hout discrimnation based on ethnic origin".

84. M. DI ACONU di sagreed with M. Sherifis's proposal because it limted
the requirement of non-discrimnation to any increase in the quota.

85. The CHAIRMAN said he took it that the Commttee wi shed to delete
paragraph 13. He suggested that paragraph 18 should be |l eft pending while
M. van Boven and M. Sherifis worked out a nmutually acceptable formul ation

86. It was so agreed.

Paragraphs 14 to 16

87. Par agraphs 14 to 16 were adopted

Par agr aph 17

88. The CHAI RMAN suggested inserting the phrase "In accordance with
article 5 (f) of the Convention" at the beginning of the paragraph and
del eting the phrase "contrary to article 5 (f) of the Convention" at the end.

89. Paragraph 17, as anended, was adopted

Par agraphs 19 to 22

90. Paragraphs 19 to 22 were adopted

91. The draft concludi ng observations concerning the thirteenth and
fourteenth periodic reports of Finland as a whole, as anended. were adopted,
subject to the rewordi ng of paragraph 18

The neeting rose at 6 p. m




